
 

Planning Commission Briefing Minutes, January 14, 2016 Page 1 

 

   SOUTH OGDEN CITY  
PLANNING COMMISSION BRIEFING MEETING MINUTES 

 
January 14, 2016 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
5:30 P.M. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chair Todd Heslop, Commissioners Mike Layton, Steve Pruess, Chris Hansen, Raymond 
Rounds, Susan Stewart, and John Bradley  
 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
City Planner Mark Vlasic and City Recorder Leesa Kapetanov 
 
The briefing meeting began at 5:36 pm.  Chair Todd Heslop indicated they would discuss 
items according to their order on the agenda.  
City Planner Mark Vlasic began the discussion by talking about the Form Based Code.  Staff 
had been made aware of a flier that had been distributed through the neighborhoods 
criticizing the Form Based Code and its effects on the neighborhood.  Mr. Vlasic addressed 
some of the concerns and let the Commissioners know that they could modify the proposed 
code if they felt they should.  He also said he would preface the public hearing on the code 
with a short presentation on what the Form Based Code was.  City Recorder Leesa 
Kapetanov also explained there would be another public hearing next month on changing 
the zoning in conjunction with the Form Based Code. 
Chair Heslop then took the opportunity to introduce new Planning Commissioner Susan 
Stewart. 
Mr. Vlasic next talked about the Water Efficient Landscape Plan.  He said there had been 
some minor changes since it was last presented, mostly grammatical corrections suggested 
by the city attorney.   
Planner Vlasic then discussed the removal of the City Council from the subdivision approval 
process.  He pointed out the Council had requested this change be made. The codifier had 
caught some other errors that also needed to be corrected and those changes were being 
made as well. 
Mr. Vlasic spoke next about the conditional use application.  It was for two businesses 
located in a zone where home occupations were conditional uses.  The businesses met the 
necessary requirements and he was recommending approval.   
City Recorder Leesa Kapetanov then addressed the proposed changes to the Planning 
Commission Policies and Procedures.  She reminded the Commissioners of the conflict 
between the Code and their Policies and Procedures concerning voting procedures and the 
steps taken to correct them.  The changes tonight would bring everything into alignment.   
Ms. Kapetanov then made the Commissioners aware that the City would host a Land Use 
Training event in February and March.  She asked which night of the week would be best for 
them; the Commissioners chose Thursday.   
City Manager Dixon, who had just joined the meeting, reported to the Commission on the 
40th Street Project.  He said the design for the street would be begun in May or June, using 
the discussion on aesthetics by the City Council and Planning Commission as guidelines. 
Mr. Vlasic then discussed the public hearing on the Form Based Code and addressed some 
of the concerns.  He reminded the Commissioners if they had concerns, the Form Based 
Code could be adjusted.  They could eliminate some of the uses or decrease the depth of 



 

Planning Commission Briefing Minutes, January 14, 2016 Page 2 

 

the zone along 40th Street, where most of the concern seemed to be.     There was 
discussion on whether decreasing the depth would allow the quality of re-development 
wanted in the area.   
There was no more discussion.  The briefing meeting was concluded.   

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate and complete record of the South Ogden City 
Planning Commission Briefing Meeting held Thursday, January 14, 2016. 
 
_______________________________                                __________February 11, 2016___________ 
Leesa Kapetanov, City Recorder                 Date Approved by the Planning Commission 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 1 

 

MINUTES OF THE 
SOUTH OGDEN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
Thursday, January 14, 2016 – 6:15 p.m. 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chair Todd Heslop, Commissioners Mike Layton, Steve Pruess, Chris Hansen, 
Raymond Rounds, Susan Stewart and John Bradley  
  
STAFF PRESENT 
City Manager Matt Dixon, City Planner Mark Vlasic and City Recorder Leesa 
Kapetanov 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Jerry Cottrell, Megan Austin, Marc Gardner, James Shupe, Jeri Whitehead, Rick 
Whitehead, Kirk Johnson, Scott Snowden, Walt Bausman, Travis Von Elling, Chris & 
Litsa Bournakis, Tim Von Bon, Renee Johns, Wes Stewart, Rosa Lopez, Virginia 
Lopez, Josh Setzer, Josh Payne, Amber Payne, Debbie McCormick, Cherilynn Uden, 
Ilene Greene, Dennis Greene, Donna Chadburn, Alejandro Lopez, Kim Aldrich, and 
others 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND OVERVIEW OF MEETING PROCEDURES 

Chair Todd Heslop called the meeting to order at 6:15 pm and called for a motion to open. 
 
Commissioner Bradley moved to open the Planning Commission Meeting, followed by a 
second from Commissioner Rounds.  Commissioners Hansen, Layton, Bradley, Stewart, 
Rounds and Pruess all voted aye.   

 
The Chair reviewed the items on the agenda.  He explained the public hearing would be an 
opportunity for those who wished to come forward and speak.  There were three items to 
speak to that evening; they would be addressed in order, one at a time.  He explained the 
Planning Commission was aware of a flier that was somewhat negative toward the Form Based 
Code; the Commission hoped to address some of the issues mentioned in the flier. He also 
explained the Commission had been discussing the Form Based Code for over a year and they 
welcomed comments.   Chair Heslop then called for a motion to close the public meeting and 
open a public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Pruess moved to close the public meeting and open a public hearing.  
Commissioner Bradley seconded the motion.  The voice vote was unanimous to open the 
public hearing. 
 
 

II. PUBLIC HEARING 
To Receive and Consider Comments on the following items: 

A. Adopting the Form Based Code and Amending the Zoning Map 
Chair Heslop invited staff to explain a little about the Form Based Code.  City Planner 
Mark Vlasic gave a presentation (see Attachment A), explaining how form based zoning 
differed from the current zoning and what its strengths were.   



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 2 

 

The Chair then invited those who wished to speak to the Form Based Code to come 
forward, stating their name and address for the record.   
 
Scott Snowden, 3625 Orchard Ave. – Mr. Snowden said he had more questions than 
comments, however he wondered what Mr. Vlasic had meant when he said people 
would have the opportunity to redevelop.  He also asked about how the properties for 
40th Street would be acquired; eminent domain? Voluntary sale?   
City Recorder Leesa Kapetanov reminded those present that the public hearing was not 
about the widening of 40th Street but the adoption of the Form Based Code.  Mr. 
Snowden said he thought they were connected.  Staff advised him they were not; they 
were two separate issues.  Ms. Kapetanov said residents along 40th Street would 
receive notice and a public hearing held about the widening, but that was not the topic 
for that evening.   
Planner Mark Vlasic asked the Chair what the procedure for the meeting would be: 
should staff answer questions as they were asked, or allow everyone to speak and get 
their questions on record.   
Chair Heslop said everyone should comment and staff would try to address them 
afterward.   
Mr. Snowden asked if redevelopment grants would be available for those wanting to do 
redevelopment, as most homeowners in the area would not have the money to tear 
down their houses and rebuild them as per the Form Based Code.  He also asked what 
would stop the commercial area from creeping further into the residential areas.  If the 
development along 40th Street did not happen as quickly as the City wanted, would they 
take properties by eminent domain? 
City Planner Vlasic commented development was a private market decision. If 
somebody saw the opportunity to purchase six lots at market value and redevelop 
them, they could do so.  Although there were not funds currently available for 
redevelopment, future RDA Project Areas could be established.  He also pointed out 
that although the Form Based Code showed an area a half block deep along 40th Street, 
it was not focused on all commercial, but residential as well.  He added that no one 
would be forced from their homes.  There was no eminent domain.  He also 
reminded everyone that they were speaking only of the Form Based Code, and not the 
widening of 40th Street.   
 
Kirk Johnson, 4021 Liberty – Mr. Johnson stated he owned two properties within the 
“blue zone” of the Form Based Code.  He thanked whoever put together the flier to get 
everyone there.  He wished that the City would have sent out a flier to everyone in the 
area.  Mr. Johnson said the more he learned about the Form Based Code, the more he 
was excited about it.  He thought having control over what the look of redevelopment 
was going to be was a great idea.  He pointed out to those present that redevelopment 
was not a requirement.  If they did not want to sell their property, they didn’t have to.  
He also commented the Form Based Code was about aesthetics, and some of the uses in 
question were already permitted in most of the area.  Tattoos could be offered at the 
barber shop and beer was already sold at the convenience store on the corner.  
Anything zoned commercial in the area already allowed them.  He said having the 
Form Based Code would be a good thing for the City.  He hoped others would support 
it. 
 
Wes Stewart, 3625 Jefferson – stated he had a degree in civil engineering, specializing 
in transportation engineering.  He said he had not seen any streets improved in the 
south end of the City.  He also said he hadn’t found anything online about the Form 
Based Code.  He presented the Planning Commissioners with a handout (see 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 3 

 

Attachment A) with a list of his concerns.  His first concern was that residents had not 
been properly notified.  He asked if a notice had been sent out.  Chair Heslop 
reminded Mr. Stewart this was his opportunity for public comment, and staff would try 
to answer questions after the public hearing.   
Mr. Stewart said a 2008 survey had said residents on the south end of the City wanted 
development, not the north end, yet it was happening here.  He began talking about 
40th Street and how congested it was and that it needed to be designed correctly.  City 
Recorder Kapetanov reminded him this public hearing was not about 40th Street.  Mr. 
Stewart began again to talk about the widening of 40th Street.  Commissioner Bradley 
said the item listed on the agenda was the Form Based Code and whether it should be 
adopted or not.  Mr. Stewart said the widening of 40th Street needed to be done in a 
wise manner and continued to talk about it.   
He then referred to Section 10.1 of the Form Based Code which said the purpose was to 
“ensure that a variety of housing types and sizes could be developed to meet the needs 
of the entire community”.  He said the Form Based Code seemed to have a 
cookie-cutter look to it.  He then referred to non-conformance, maintenance, and the 
expansion of a non-conforming building, noting that if anyone wanted to expand their 
home more than 25%, they would have to bring it into conformance.  Mr. Stewart then 
read through some of the uses being proposed and questioned whether they should be. 
He thought the City ought to not spend money on redevelopment but on adding 
sidewalks to some of the existing streets.  He said that bars do not belong in residential 
neighborhoods and then pointed out that if 40th Street was not widened correctly, they 
would have to tear out the new businesses and widen it again.  He thought widening it 
20 feet would be better than just 10 feet.   
Mr. Stewart then pointed to a document that showed that a wider commercial area had 
been considered along 40th Street and warned that there was no guarantee to the end 
of urban sprawl.  He said residents were regularly being run out of the City because 
they were not conforming to South Ogden City code.  He pointed to some pictures 
from the Form Based Code and said they were not a fair representation and advertised 
the Form Based Code incorrectly.   
Mr. Stewart thought it would be appropriate for the Commission to delay their decision 
until residents had more time to learn and understand about the Form Based Code.  
He added that he felt the meeting that evening had not been noticed correctly.   
 
Josh Payne, 3796 Porter – said he liked the concept, but if he had wanted to live in an 
area like that being proposed, he would have moved to Salt Lake.  He had moved into 
his grandfather’s house in South Ogden because he liked the old style neighborhood.  
He was concerned with the uses of smoke shops and tattoo parlors being allowed in the 
area.   
 
Litza Bournakis, owner of property at 356 39th Street – asked if the City had any 
developers interested in doing anything right now.  She then pointed out that before 
Macey’s was built, real estate agents were offering the people prices way below the 
market value and the people were eventually forced out of their homes.  She 
wondered if there was anything in place to ensure that nothing like that would happen 
again when developers come in.  Ms. Bournakis’ next concern was parking if the area 
was developed.   
 
Marc Gardner, 555 40th – he asked what would happen if someone bought the property 
next to him and turned it into commercial.  Would they be allowed to stay open late?  
How would he be impacted by parking?   
 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 4 

 

Megan Austin, 3712 Ogden Ave. – said she lived a block away from Washington 
Boulevard and it seemed this zoning change was bringing Washington Boulevard to her 
street.  She was concerned with the traffic it would bring. She was also concerned a 
developer would come in and want to buy the properties around her and what would 
happen if she did not want to sell.    
 
Travis Von Elling, 11 Yale Drive – asked what the timeline was for this project.  He 
liked that the City was trying to improve its look, and hoped that it might encourage 
homeowners to improve their homes.  He asked if the City had considered limiting the 
types of businesses coming into the area as they might attract a demographic of people 
not suitable for a residential area.  
 
Commissioner Rounds clarified that the Form Based Code was a tool for the City to use 
as development came into the City.  The City itself was not doing anything in terms of 
buying property, building buildings, or creating anything.  When a developer came to 
the City, purchased property and chose to develop it, the Form Based Code was the 
City’s tool to make sure the development tool place properly and in a way the City 
wanted it to be done.   
 
Megan Austin, 3712 Ogden Ave. – commented that nobody knew about the meeting. 
And according to the next item on the agenda, they were trying to remove the City 
Council from the approval process.  She felt the Council should not be removed, as 
residents knew who their City Council members were because they had elected them.   
 
Commissioner Rounds stated the Planning Commission had been working on the Form 
Based Code for well over a year and this public hearing was the opportunity for people 
to comment.   
 
Wes Stewart, 3625 Jefferson – said the zoning change would be a huge impact on the 
people in South Ogden.  He said it would also impact the School District and wondered 
if they had been notified.  Children would be walking up 40th Street to get to school 
and he was concerned.   
 
Scott Snowden, 3625 Orchard Ave. – added that they lived in South Ogden by choice, 
and had chosen the home they lived in so they could avoid debt.  If they wanted a 
larger house, they would go further south in South Ogden.  Many of the people in his 
area (north of 40th Street) felt they were viewed as the less desirable part of town.  He 
was glad with the widening of 40th Street, but was concerned with the commercial creep 
that always seemed to happen and the temptation of the City to reap the revenue of 
businesses rather than residential areas.  He was concerned that the same thing might 
happen along 36th Street.  Even if people did not want to sell, they would eventually be 
squeezed out. 
 
Walt Bausman, 5792 S 1075 E – said he lived in the south part of the City, but wanted to 
make some comments about the Form Based Code.  He commented about private vs. 
public streets, locating the civic center in the center of the city, not on the outskirts, and 
facilitating the integration of new development and redevelopment in existing 
neighborhoods.  The Form Based Code would allow more commercial areas next to the 
existing homes and would slow the traffic on 40th Street because the intent was to add 
more shops.  He thought the shops should be more appropriate for the existing 
neighborhoods.  The Form Based Code also stated it wanted to draw more people to 
some of the areas, but it would directly affect the residential properties nearby.   



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 5 

 

Wes Stewart, 3625 Jefferson – commented that Commissioner Rounds had said the 
developers had a say in this matter, but Mr. Stewart said that was incorrect.  The 
Commissioners had the say right now in the vote.  It would affect people’s lives.  He 
asked that the bad uses be taken out.  If it was a matter of all or none, he encouraged 
them to vote none.   
 
There were no more comments from the public concerning the Form Based Code. 
 

B. Amending Title 10, Chapter 23, Replacing it With the Proposed Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance 
Chair Heslop opened the floor to comments concerning the proposed Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance, asking staff to first give a brief overview of the ordinance.  Mr. 
Vlasic informed those present that the City had been looking at this ordinance for a few 
years, but felt it should be implemented now as the Form Based Code would refer to it.  
The ordinance would create a better use of water resources through landscaping and 
irrigation.  He said it would not only affect the areas being considered for the Form 
Based Code but the entire City.   
 
Wes Stewart, 3625 Jefferson – commented that as a citizen and business owner he 
would prefer to have a choice and not be forced to implement water wise landscaping.  
He suggested giving tax incentives to those who go with water-wise landscaping.   
 
There were no more comments concerning the Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.   
 

C. Amending Title 11 of the City Code, Removing The City Council From The Subdivision 
Approval Process And Making Various Other “Housekeeping” Corrections 
The chair opened the floor to comments concerning the proposed subdivision 
ordinance.  He again asked staff to give an overview of the issue.  Planner Vlasic said 
the Subdivision Ordinance had been adopted within the last few months so that it 
would function better.  The City Council had looked at the approval process and 
determined that they did not need to be involved.  Some other “housekeeping” 
changes as suggested by the codifier were also being made.  City Manager Dixon 
added that the Council’s decision to remove itself from the approval process was part of 
an ongoing discussion amongst themselves on legislative versus administrative 
functions.  He explained the difference between legislative and administrative 
functions and why it made sense to not have the Council involved in administrative 
processes.  He concluded by saying the Planning Commission would forward their 
recommendation on to the City Council, but the City Council would have the final 
decision on the matter.  
 
Kirk Johnson, 4021 Liberty – Mr. Johnson clarified that the Commission was only voting 
that evening on a recommendation to the City Council.  Staff confirmed that was 
correct. 
 
Scott Snowden, 3625 Orchard Ave. – commented the reason the public may be against 
it is because they couldn’t “hold feet to the fire” of the people they elected.  The 
bureaucrats could turn a deaf ear to the public.  
 
Litza Bournakis, owner of property at 356 39th Street – thought the City Council should 
be involved in whatever the Planning Commission was deciding.  The Council was the 
people they had voted for.   
 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 6 

 

Wes Stewart, 3625 Jefferson – seconded what Ms. Bournakis had said. 
 
There were no other public comments.  Chair Heslop called for a motion to close the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Rounds moved to close the public hearing and return to the public 
meeting, followed by a second from Commissioner Pruess.  The voice vote was 
unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 
 

 

III. ZONING ACTIONS – Legislative 
A. Discussion and Recommendation on Adoption of the Form Based Code and Amending 

the Zoning Map 
Chair Todd Heslop turned the time to City Manager Dixon to answer questions raised 
during the public hearing.  Mr. Dixon answered questions concerning opportunity, 
eminent domain, etc.  He pointed out that there was no timeline for development in the 
area covered by the Form Based Code; it could be years before a developer approached 
the City, but when they did, the City would be prepared with a vision and ordinance of 
what they wanted.   
Mr. Dixon then gave an update on the widening of 40th Street, stating that it was in the 
design process with construction slated to begin in spring 2017.   
City Planner Vlasic pointed out that the 2008 General Plan update designated this area as 
commercial and at the time of adoption it had been supported by the general public.  
Mr. Dixon then said the City follows all noticing requirements required by the State, but 
he also recognized residents’ desire for more notice of meetings.   
 
Commissioner Pruess asked what criteria IBI had used in determining the depth of the 
zones along 40th Street.  Mr. Vlasic said he did not know for certain, but assumed that for 
successful redevelopment to occur, it needed to encompass more than just one or two 
lots along 40th.  They probably also took into consideration how access to development 
along 40th would best be handled, trying to move it from being directly on 40th Street to 
the side streets; it was a standard transportation model for busy streets.   
Commissioner Bradley asked staff to address what types of limits they could put on the 
uses being considered for the zones.  Mr. Vlasic said the uses were a valid concern which 
had certainly been voiced that evening.  Also valid was the idea that development should 
be focused on the corners or “nodes”.  Maybe the question should be asked if the full 
range of uses should be allowed between the corners or nodes, or if they should be scaled 
back.   
Commissioner Rounds asked if they could continue the public hearing.  That way they 
could consider the comments and have staff look at the uses.  Mr. Dixon said that would 
be fine, although as mentioned earlier, there would be a public hearing next month on the 
actual rezoning of the properties as per the Form Based Code.  He also said staff was 
available every day for those members of the community who had additional questions.  
Ms. Kapetanov added that the notice requirements for a rezone were such that a letter 
would be sent to each property owner within the proposed zones informing them of the 
next public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Rounds moved to continue the public hearing concerning adoption of the 
Form Based Code until next month’s regularly scheduled meeting.  City Recorder Leesa 
Kapetanov asked if Commissioner Rounds would like to add to his motion direction to 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 7 

 

staff to look into the uses of the area.  City Manager Dixon added it would make clear for 
the record that the majority of the Commission was in favor of directing staff to look into 
the uses.  Commissioner Rounds added to his motion that staff should look into the 
uses of the Form Based Code in certain areas to see if some should/could be excluded or 
if they should remain.  Commissioner Pruess seconded the motion.  Chair Heslop 
asked if there were further discussion, and seeing none, he called the vote: 
 
    Commissioner Bradley-  Yes 
    Commissioner Layton-  Yes 
    Commissioner Pruess-  Yes 
    Commissioner Hansen-  Yes 
    Commissioner Stewart-  Yes 
    Commissioner Rounds-  Yes 
 
The motion stood. 
 

B. Discussion and Recommendation on Amending Title 10, Chapter 23, Replacing it With 
the Proposed Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
Commissioner Rounds said he understood the public comment about allowing a 
commercial organization to have a choice in their landscaping; however, there was a 
common good when it came to water usage.  It had been his experience that commercial 
organizations would prefer not to have to put any landscaping in at all if they didn’t have 
to.  He felt it should be the Commission’s recommendation that the Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance be adopted.   
 
Commissioner Bradley moved to recommend approval of Title 10, Chapter 23, replacing 
it with the proposed Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.  The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Rounds.  The Chair asked if there was further discussion.  There was 
no comment, so the Chair called the vote: 
 
    Commissioner Bradley-  Yes 
    Commissioner Layton-  Yes 
    Commissioner Pruess-  Yes 
    Commissioner Hansen-  Yes 
    Commissioner Stewart-  Yes 
    Commissioner Rounds-  Yes 
 
The recommendation for approval was passed. 
 
  

C. Discussion and Recommendation on Amending Title 11 of the City Code, Removing The 
City Council From The Subdivision Approval Process And Making Various Other 
“Housekeeping” Corrections 
Commissioner Rounds said he had difficulty with this item.  He felt they could only vote 
yes on it since the Council themselves had decided to remove them from the process.  
Since the Council consisted of the elected officials, the Commission’s only response could 
be “yes”.  Commissioner Bradley pointed out the City Council’s involvement took place in 
crafting the ordinance, so if a developer came and wanted to put in a subdivision, and it 
met the requirements of the ordinance, neither the City Council nor the Planning 
Commission would have any choice but to approve it.   



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 8 

 

City Manager Dixon explained the difficulty that might occur if the public had the 
perception that the Council could somehow deny a subdivision approval if there was 
something the public did not like about it.  The reality was that if a developer met all the 
requirements of the subdivision ordinance, the City was bound to approve it.  However, 
Mr. Dixon added that the City Council could still remain in the approval process if they 
chose to.   
Commissioner Rounds asked why they were voting on it, why the Council didn’t just 
designate the Planning Commission as the group who would approve subdivisions.  Mr. 
Dixon explained that because this was a land use ordinance amendment, the Planning 
Commission was the designated body to review it and make recommendations to the 
Council.  City Recorder Kapetanov added that amending a land use ordinance required a 
public hearing, and the statute required the public hearing to take place before the 
Planning Commission.   
Mr. Dixon stated the Planning Commission could make whatever recommendation they 
wanted to the City Council, and the City Council could do whatever they wanted with that 
recommendation.   
Commissioner Bradley commented that having been on the Council, he had seen times 
when the public had come with the expectation that the Council could overturn some 
decision even when an applicant had met all the requirements of the zoning ordinance; 
however, the reality was that they couldn’t deny it.  He felt this ordinance was a mere 
reflection of reality.   
 
Commissioner Layton moved to amend Title 11 of the city code, removing the Council 
from the subdivision approval process, allowing the Planning Commission to apply the 
law.  Commissioner Pruess seconded the motion.  The Chair asked if there were 
further discussion.  Planner Vlasic pointed out the motion had been to approve the 
amendment, but in reality it was to recommend approval of the amendment to the City 
Council.  Commissioner Layton acknowledged that was the case.   Chair Heslop called 
the vote: 
 
    Commissioner Bradley-  Yes 
    Commissioner Layton-  Yes 
    Commissioner Pruess-  Yes 
    Commissioner Hansen-  Yes 
    Commissioner Stewart-  Yes 
    Commissioner Rounds-  No 
 
The recommendation that Title 11 be amended was passed.   
 
 

IV. CONDITIONAL USE ACTIONS – Administrative 
A. Consideration of Business License Applications for a Holding Company and Forensic 

Accounting  Business Located at 6045 S Ridgeline Dr., Apt. B108  (Falls Apartments) 
Planner Mark Vlasic reviewed the application with the Commission, stating it met the 
requirements of conducting that type business in the zone.  Staff recommended 
approval.   
 
Commissioner Pruess moved to approve the business license application for a holding 
company and forensic accounting business located at 6045 S Ridgeline Dr.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Rounds.  The Chair called for further 
discussion.  There was no further discussion.  The vote was called: 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 9 

 

 
 
   Commissioner Bradley-  Yes 
   Commissioner Layton-  Yes 
   Commissioner Pruess-  Yes 
   Commissioner Hansen-  Yes 
   Commissioner Stewart-  Yes 
   Commissioner Rounds-  Yes 
 
The conditional use was approved. 

 
 

V. SPECIAL ITEMS 
A. Amending the Planning Commission Rules and Procedures 

Recorder Leesa Kapetanov reminded the Commission this amendment would bring the 
City Code and the Rules of Procedures into line with each other.  Commissioner 
Stewart pointed out that a section was being removed concerning public hearings.  
City Recorder Kapetanov cited some instances when the requirement in the Rules and 
Procedures contradicted what was in the City’s ordinance and the state ordinance when 
it came to notifications.  She added that requirements for public hearings should be 
found in the ordinance, not in the Rules and Procedures.   
Commissioner Stewart said she was concerned with the perception that removing it 
would not require the City to give notice.  Ms. Kapetanov said having it there could 
cause confusion as to what the actual notification requirement was.   
City Manager Dixon suggested a clause be added that stated the Planning Commission 
would follow all State and City notification requirements.   
 
Commissioner Stewart moved to include a statement that the City would follow 
notifications as per State Code.  Recorder Kapetanov suggested City Code be added as 
well.  Commissioner Stewart added City Code to the motion.  She then added that 
all other amendments would be accepted as proposed.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Rounds.  There was no further discussion.  The Chair called the vote: 
 
   Commissioner Bradley-  Yes 

    Commissioner Layton-  Yes 
    Commissioner Pruess-  Yes 
    Commissioner Hansen-  Yes 
    Commissioner Stewart-  Yes 
    Commissioner Rounds-  Yes 

 
The motion passed. 

 
 

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 

Chair Heslop apologized for not welcoming the newest member of the Planning Commission, 
Susan Stewart, at the beginning of the meeting.  He welcomed Ms. Stewart and said they were 
glad she was there.   
Mr. Heslop then stated the public had had opportunity to state their feelings at the public 
hearing and he felt the commissioners had listened to their questions and concerns.   
There was no other business. 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 10 

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
A. Approval of December 10, 2015 Briefing Meeting Minutes 

Chair Heslop called for a motion concerning the minutes. 
 
Commissioner Pruess moved to approve the December 10 briefing meeting minutes.  
Commissioner Layton seconded the motion.  All present voted aye except for 
Commissioners Stewart and Rounds, who abstained as they had not been present at 
the meeting.   
 

B. Approval of December 10, 2015 Meeting Minutes 
The chair called for a motion concerning the meeting minutes. 
 
Commissioner Layton moved to approve the December 10 meeting minutes, followed 
by a second from Commissioner Hansen.  All present voted aye except for 
Commissioners Stewart and Rounds who abstained as they had not been present at the 
meeting.   
 

 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Jerry Cottrell, 5765 S 1075 E – thanked the Planning Commission for the time they took in 
listening to the concerns that evening.   
He then reminded the Commissioners that the concerns about the uses in the area of the Form 
Based Code that they had previous limited the number of payday loan establishments in the 
City.  They should have a vision of what they wanted the City to be and exclude those 
businesses that did not contribute to that vision, whether it was a tattoo parlor, payday loan 
business, or sexually oriented businesses.   
 
Scott Snowden, 3625 Orchard Ave. – thanked the Commission for their willingness to suspend 
some of the formal Robert’s Rules of Order for a more informal discussion. 
He then asked if there was even any more room left in the City for subdivisions and if there had 
been a need to even amend the ordinance. 
City Planner Vlasic said dividing a single lot into two lots was considered a subdivision and had to 
follow the rules.     
 

VIII. ADJOURN 

Chair Heslop called for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Commissioner Rounds moved to adjourn, followed by a second from Commissioner Bradley.  
All present voted aye.   
 
The meeting ended at 9:02 pm. 
 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate and complete record of the South Ogden City Planning Commission 

Meeting held Thursday, January 14, 2016. 

 

______________________________________                            ____________February 11, 2016__________ 

Leesa Kapetanov, City Recorder                                        Date Approved by the Planning Commission 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Form Based Code Presentation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 12 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 13 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 14 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 15 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 16 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 17 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 18 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 19 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 20 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 21 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 22 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 23 

 

 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Handout from Wes Stewart 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 25 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 26 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 27 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 28 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 29 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 30 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 31 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 32 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 33 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 34 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 35 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 36 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 37 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 38 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 39 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 40 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 41 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 42 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 43 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 44 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 45 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 46 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 47 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 48 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 49 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 50 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 51 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 52 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 53 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 54 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 55 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 56 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 57 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 58 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 59 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 60 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 61 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 62 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 63 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 64 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 65 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 66 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 67 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 68 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 69 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 70 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 71 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 72 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 73 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 74 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 75 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 76 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 77 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 78 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 79 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 80 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 81 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 82 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 83 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 84 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 85 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 86 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 87 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 88 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 89 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 90 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 91 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 92 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 93 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 94 

 



 

January 14, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Page 95 

 

 

 


